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1                     PROCEEDINGS

2      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  By the authority vested in

3 me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call

4 Docket No. 13-0252.  This docket was initiated by

5 FutureGen Industrial Alliance, Inc.  The applicatio n

6 concerns a request for a certificate authorizing th e

7 construction and operation of a carbon dioxide

8 pipeline and a limited grant of authority to take a nd

9 acquire an interest in property pursuant to

10 Section 20 of the Carbon Dioxide Transportation and

11 Sequestration Act.

12               May I have the appearances for the

13 record, first on behalf of the applicant?

14      MR. BARRY:  Kyle Barry.  Law firm is Husch

15 Blackwell; H-u-s-c-h B-l-a-c-k-w-e-l-l.  Address is

16 118 South Fourth Street, Unit 101, Springfield,

17 Illinois  62701.  Phone number is (217) 622-6580.

18 And do you need my e-mail address?

19      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That would be fine.

20      MR. BARRY:  kyle.barry@huschblackwell.com.

21      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

22               For staff?
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1      MS. PALMER:  On behalf of staff of the Illinoi s

2 Commerce Commission, Angelique Palmer and Kimberly

3 Swan, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite C-800, Chicag o,

4 Illinois  60601; telephone (312) 814-2850.

5      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  When you speak, please talk

6 right into the phone because there's a little bit o f

7 trouble hearing you here.

8               Are there any others who wish to ente r

9 an appearance?

10      MR. HILL:  My name is Jeffrey Hill.  My addres s

11 is 1901 Route 67 Meredosia, Illinois  62665, and ou r

12 phone number is (217) 472-3316.

13      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Hill, do you have an

14 e-mail you could share with us?

15      MR. HILL:  Yes.  It is jeff.hill@ucm.biz.

16      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any others wishin g

17 to enter an appearance?

18               Let the record show no response.

19               This matter comes on for a prehearing

20 conference this morning.  We're going to set the

21 schedule for this proceeding.  We do have a deadlin e

22 in this proceeding which is February 28, 2014 so we
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1 have to bear that in mind when we're setting the

2 schedule.

3               First off, I'd like to ask everyone,

4 please, when you make a filing, serve me

5 electronically.  I would appreciate both a Word and  a

6 PDF filing.  I do not need hard copies of filings.

7 If you wish to send them, that's fine, but I don't

8 need them, and by the time I get it electronically,  I

9 probably won't use the hard copy.

10               When you send things to me, please be

11 sure and include 13-0252 which is the docket number

12 in the subject line, and anyone wishing to interven e

13 would have to file a petition to intervene.  Those

14 need to be verified, and they would have to include

15 what the interest in the matter is.  For example, i f

16 you owned land that could be subject to the take in

17 this proceeding.

18               I have received a motion filed by

19 FutureGen to change the designation of Exhibit I, t he

20 landowner list, to public.

21               Are there any objections to that

22 motion?
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1      MS. SWAN:  None from staff, Judge.

2      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Then that motion is granted .

3               I've also received a petition to

4 intervene which was filed on April 22, 2013 by the

5 Illinois Competitive Energy Association.

6               Are there any objections to that

7 petition?

8      MS. SWAN:  None from staff, Judge.

9      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Then that petition to

10 intervene is granted.

11               Has FutureGen provided notice to each

12 local government where the proposed pipeline will b e

13 located with a map of the pipeline?

14      MR. BARRY:  I certainly provided notice to the

15 local governments I believe, and I'm not sure if th e

16 notice included a map.

17      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Well, if you would check on

18 that.  The statute requires a map also, and once yo u

19 discover what you've done, if you could file

20 something on e-Docket so that it's clear in the

21 record.  It would need to be verified.

22               And I have the same question about
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1 whether or not notice has been published in a

2 newspaper.

3      MR. BARRY:  Notice has been published in the

4 newspaper.

5      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very good.

6               I'm going to give a brief overview of

7 the procedure for the landowner who's present who h as

8 probably not participated in any Illinois Commerce

9 Commission proceedings before.

10               Here at the Commerce Commission, we

11 don't do live hearings like you see on TV and thing s.

12 Testimony is prefiled, which means the testimony is

13 written out, typed out.  It can be typed out in

14 question/answer form or it can be typed out as like  a

15 letter that just explains whoever is testifying,

16 their position and the facts that they wish to

17 provide.

18               Before we went on the record, there

19 was a scheduling discussion about the dates for tho se

20 testimonies.  Intervenors generally file testimony on

21 the same date as staff so that would be staff, dire ct

22 and intervenor testimony.
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1               The first round of testimony would

2 simply respond to the testimony that FutureGen has

3 already filed and give any positions that you may

4 have regarding the route itself or the need for the

5 route or anything that you want to get in.

6               Your first chance to file testimony i s

7 the time that you can really bring up anything.

8               After staff and intervenor file

9 testimony then the company will have an opportunity

10 to file rebuttal testimony responding to any concer ns

11 that you or staff raise about their petition.

12               After that, you will have another

13 opportunity to respond to the company's rebuttal

14 testimony.  In that opportunity, you are limited in

15 your testimony to only responding to something

16 another party has raised in testimony already.

17               After that, there would be one final

18 opportunity for FutureGen to file surrebuttal

19 testimony, and then we will have an evidentiary

20 hearing.

21               Our evidentiary hearings are only for

22 the purpose of entering the testimony that has
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1 already been prefiled, and there is then an

2 opportunity for all parties to cross-examine any

3 witnesses that have provided testimony.  So the

4 hearings themselves are pretty limited in function.

5               After the hearings, we have briefs,

6 initial briefs and reply briefs in order for each

7 party to present their position, and then I will

8 prepare a proposed order, which is what I will

9 recommend to the Commission, the finding that I

10 believe they should make.

11               After I've sent a proposed order, the

12 parties will have an opportunity to respond to the

13 proposed order by writing a brief on exceptions.  T he

14 brief on exceptions must include any language that

15 the party wishes to be included in the order when i t

16 is sent to the Commission.

17               And then finally, there will be an

18 opportunity to reply to everyone's brief on

19 exceptions.

20               So that's the brief overview.

21               Before going on the record, there was

22 a scheduling discussion.
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1               Oh, one other thing I should mention.

2 If a landowner decides to intervene and to provide

3 testimony, if they are challenging the route that

4 FutureGen has proposed, I would recommend that you

5 propose an alternative route, and there would need to

6 be a map of that route, and there would need to be a

7 list of landowners who would be affected by that

8 alternative route.

9               If the Commission has to pick a route ,

10 then it's necessary that the parties have one in

11 front of them for the Commission to look at.

12               All right.  Before going on the recor d

13 we've discussed a schedule in this matter, and I

14 believe the parties are in agreement that

15 staff/intervenor direct testimony would be due to b e

16 filed and served on July 16th.

17               There will be a status on July 25th.

18 Let's see, a time for that.  Would 9:30 a.m. work f or

19 the parties?

20      MR. BARRY:  Yes.  That works four FutureGen.

21      MS. SWAN:  That works for staff.

22      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  And then
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1 FutureGen rebuttal testimony is due to be filed and

2 served on August 13.

3               Staff/intervenor rebuttal testimony

4 due to be filed and served September 10th, and a

5 status again on September 12th.

6               Is that as much as the parties

7 intended to set as far as a schedule this morning?

8      MS. SWAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

9               What time would you like to set the

10 status for September 12th?

11      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Would 9:30 work for that

12 too?

13      MS. SWAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

14      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Do the parties want to

15 discuss discovery at all this morning?

16      MR. BARRY:  There are some issues relating to

17 discovery I would like to address.

18      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Certainly.

19      MR. BARRY:  ICC staff has already provided dat a

20 requests to the alliance, and one of the documents

21 which is likely going to be responsive includes an

22 attachment that is considered proprietary and
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1 confidential, not by the Alliance necessarily but

2 rather by a sister or state agency of the Commissio n,

3 and so if the document is responsive, we obviously

4 want to provide it to staff but have concerns about

5 revealing proprietary information that is owned by

6 another state agency.

7               So I just wanted to raise that issue

8 with you, Judge, and see if you have a preference

9 about how we should address that or any

10 recommendations about how to address that issue, an d

11 I guess we should probably think about other, how t o

12 handle other confidential proprietary information a s

13 well.

14               My understanding, that if there were

15 no other intervenors in the case, this probably

16 wouldn't be an issue because this would be covered

17 under the statutes and rules governing the

18 Commission, but since we have intervenors, that

19 presents a problem.

20      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Well, as you say, staff

21 probably is not a concern for you since they are

22 required to keep confidential, information
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1 confidential.

2               Often times if there is going to be

3 confidential or proprietary matter exchanged in

4 discovery or possibly provided in testimony, there' s

5 a motion filed requesting a protective ruling which

6 sets the parameters, and there's pretty standard

7 protective ruling that we use in these cases, so it

8 may be that you should go ahead and file a motion f or

9 protective ruling.

10      MR. BARRY:  Okay.  We'll do that.

11      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Is there anything else?

12      MR. BARRY:  I don't think I have anything else

13 relating to discovery, but I have a couple other

14 issues I wanted to address.

15      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Does staff have

16 anything regarding discovery?

17      MS. SWAN:  Not at this time, Your Honor.

18      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Proceed.

19      MR. BARRY:  One question I had was we've had

20 some discussions with staff that go beyond discover y

21 and relate to supplemental information relating to

22 the application itself.
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1               In my experience, there are a number

2 of different ways we could request permission to be

3 submit supplemental information, and I wanted to

4 raise that with you to see if you have any

5 preferences.

6               For example, would you prefer the

7 applicant to submit a formal motion requesting

8 permission to supplement the application or -- I

9 guess that's probably the method that comes first t o

10 mind for me but I wanted to see if you had a

11 preference, Judge.

12      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  I think the

13 motion would be fine.

14               I would suggest that when you file th e

15 motion, proceed and file the supplemental informati on

16 at the same time but file that as testimony.  File

17 the motion separately as a motion and then at the

18 same time file your supplemental information as

19 testimony.

20               And I'm assuming it would be supporte d

21 by a verification or testimony or something like

22 that, and then it's clear looking at e-Docket where
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1 all the testimony is that way, so that would be fin e.

2               And if there is supplemental

3 information, of course we want it, and we want it a s

4 soon as possible so everybody can take a look at it

5 before they file their testimony.

6      MS. PALMER:  Your Honor, this is Angelique for

7 staff.

8               In light of what your direction was,

9 could we possibly pencil in a firm date just to

10 ensure that staff as well as any other intervenors

11 have an opportunity to take time and review

12 supplemental information as it will definitely affe ct

13 the direct testimony that we have to file.

14      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That sounds like a good

15 idea.

16               Can you tell me when you would be abl e

17 to file the supplemental?

18      MS. PALMER:  Actually, we'll defer a little bi t

19 to Mr. Barry to see what he proposes and see if

20 that's reasonable.

21      MR. BARRY:  I'd be happy to provide a date, bu t

22 in part, I think that date may be contingent on som e
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1 additional discussions we may have with staff, so I 'd

2 hate to set it too early because if there are

3 additional requests that result from those

4 discussions, obviously, we'd want to try to work th em

5 in as quickly as we could.

6      MS. PALMER:  Okay.  Well, we have a direct

7 testimony date of July 16th, so would you need two

8 weeks do you think to get the supplemental

9 information in?  I think that would give us enough

10 opportunity to talk if that would be helpful to you

11 and your client.

12      MR. BARRY:  I was thinking about sometime in

13 the first part of June, again, to allow for some ti me

14 to determine whether there is additional informatio n

15 that results from some anticipated meetings with,

16 informal meetings with staff.  So I guess I would

17 throw out maybe June 7th.

18      MS. PALMER:  Okay.  We are definitely erring o n

19 the side of sooner as opposed to later, so we'd lik e

20 to get it done in May.

21      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'd suggest that you go

22 ahead and if you know that you're going to have
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1 supplemental information, just go ahead and file it

2 as soon as you can, and if subsequently you have

3 discussions with staff and there's additional

4 supplemental information, there's no harm in filing  a

5 couple of different supplements.

6               I understand staff's concern because

7 they'll have to look at it and any other intervenor s

8 may have to look at it as well before that July 16

9 testimony date.

10      MR. BARRY:  I understand.  I guess

11 alternatively then, if you would prefer a date, I

12 would suggest May 31st or if you'd like to keep tha t,

13 if you would like us to follow the direction you ju st

14 provided, we can do that as well.

15      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Well, could you file the

16 supplemental information that you know that you're

17 going to file by May 22nd?

18      MR. BARRY:  Yes.

19      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.  Why don't we set

20 May 22nd as a filing for your motion for leave to

21 file supplemental information and then if you

22 discover that you need to make an additional filing ,
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1 just make an additional motion as soon as you

2 practically can just in order to give the benefit t o

3 the parties of the information.

4               Is there anything else to discuss thi s

5 morning?

6      MR. BARRY:  I have one more item, and this is

7 perhaps relevant to the discussion we just had abou t

8 supplemental testimony, and, again, this is an issu e

9 I wanted to raise with you this morning, Judge.

10               The notices have gone out to the

11 landowners, and we anticipate that there will be

12 discussions with the landowners about whether they

13 would enter into agreements relating to the pipelin e,

14 proposed pipeline route.

15               To the extent that the landowners hav e

16 other preferences that are different from the

17 proposed route, the alliance will undoubtedly

18 entertain those preferences as part of a discussion .

19               So my question relates to your

20 preference about how to deal with potential changes

21 to the pipeline route.  So one method for addressin g

22 that would be to file stipulations with the
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1 landowners, but I think you sort of addressed this a

2 little earlier, that if intervenors have alternativ e

3 routes that they want to propose and those routes g o

4 over other parcels that have not received notice ye t,

5 then the folks who own those parcels are going to

6 require notice.

7               So how would you -- can you give us

8 any preference or statement about how to deal with

9 any voluntary changes to the proposed pipeline rout e?

10      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Just for clarity, when you

11 mention voluntary changes, are you saying that

12 FutureGen agrees and the person owning the property

13 that would be affected by the change agrees?

14      MR. BARRY:  Yes.  That would be one scenario,

15 yes.

16      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  If your proposed change doe s

17 not affect any different landowner, then you can fi le

18 a stipulation.  You should provide a map of the

19 change so that the Commission, when it enters its

20 order, knows exactly what the route is going to be.

21               To the extent there are any changes

22 that would affect different landowners, you would
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1 need to make a filing here at the clerk's office

2 identifying all the new landowners so that we could

3 send notice of the proceedings to those landowners,

4 and again, we would need a map of the proposed

5 change.

6      MR. BARRY:  Very good.  Thank you.

7      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Now, is there anything else ?

8      MR. BARRY:  Nothing from my end.

9      MS. SWAN:  Nothing from staff, Your Honor.

10      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Anything from

11 you?

12      MR. HILL:  Not being familiar with the

13 proceedings, Your Honor, I have nothing.

14      JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right then.  We have se t

15 a schedule:

16               July 16th for staff/intervenor

17 testimony.

18               A status hearing July 25th at

19 9:30 a.m.

20               FutureGen rebuttal testimony

21 August 13.

22               Staff/intervenor rebuttal testimony
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1 September 10th.

2               And a status hearing September 12th a t

3 9:30.

4               FutureGen has indicated that they wil l

5 be making a supplemental filing on or before May 22 ,

6 2013.

7               With that, I will continue this matte r

8 to July 25, 2013 at 9:30 a.m.

9               Thank you all.

10                      (Whereupon the hearing was

11                      continued to July 25, 2013 at

12                      9:30 a.m.)
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